

BYLAWS
OF
SAXON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

Project Defined

1.01. *"Project"* shall mean all of the real property located in the City of McAllen, County of Hidalgo, State of Texas, including the land; all improvements and structures of the land; and all easements, rights, and appurtenances to the land, more particularly described as follows: See Exhibit "A".

Declaration Defined

1.02. *"Declaration"* shall mean that certain Declaration applicable to the Project known as **SAXON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUMS**, organized pursuant to Section 82.101 of the Texas Uniform Condominium Act, and filed in the Office of the County Clerk of Hidalgo, State of Texas, on May 13, 1996, in the Official Records, Document No. 523140, including any amendments to the Declaration as may be made from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Declaration.

Other Terms Defined

1.03. Other terms used herein shall have the meaning given them in the Declaration, incorporated by reference and made a part of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE 2
APPLICABILITY OF BYLAWS

Corporation

2.01. The provisions of these Bylaws constitute the Bylaws of the nonprofit corporation known as **SAXON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUMS, ASSOCIATION, INC.**, referred to as the "Association."

Project Applicability

2.02. The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the Project as defined in Paragraph 1.01 of these Bylaws.

Personal Application

2.03. All present or future owners, tenants, present or future tenants, their employees, or other persons that use the facilities of the Project in any manner are subject to the regulations set forth in these Bylaws. The mere acquisition or rental of any of the Units of the Project, or the act of occupancy of any of the Units, will signify that these Bylaws are accepted and ratified will be complied with by the purchaser, tenant, or occupant.

ARTICLE 3

OFFICES

Principal Office

3.01. The principal office of the Association shall be located in the City of McAllen, County of Hidalgo, State of Texas.

Registered Office and Registered Agent

3.02. The Association shall have and shall continuously maintain in the State of Texas a registered office and a registered agent, whose office shall be identical with such registered office, as required by the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act. The registered office may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office of the corporation, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 4

QUALIFICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP

Membership

4.01. The membership of the Association shall consist of all the Owners of the Units within the Project.

Proof of Membership

4.02. The rights of membership shall not be exercised by any person until satisfactory proof has been furnished to the Secretary of the Association that the person is qualified as a Member. Such proof may consist of a copy of a duly executed and acknowledged deed or title insurance policy evidencing ownership of a Unit in the Project. Such deed or policy shall be deemed conclusive in the absence of a conflicting claim based on a later deed or policy.

No Additional Qualifications

4.03. The sole qualification for membership shall be ownership of a Unit in the Project. No initiation fees, costs, or dues shall be assessed against any person as a condition of membership **except such assessments, levies, and charges as are specifically authorized under the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration.**

Certificates of Membership

4.04. The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of certificates evidencing membership in the Association which shall be in such form as may be determined by the Board. All certificates evidencing membership shall be consecutively numbered. The name and address of each Member and the date of issuance of the certificate shall be entered on the records of the Association and maintained by the Secretary at the registered office of the Association.

ARTICLE 5

VOTING RIGHTS

Voting

5.01. Voting rights shall be allocated among the Members on the basis of the formulas and allocations set forth in the Declaration.

Proxies

5.02. At all meetings of Members, each Member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed

with the Secretary of the Association. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease on conveyance by the Member of the Member's Unit or on receipt of notice by the Secretary of the death or judicially declared incompetence of such Member. No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise specifically provided in the proxy.

Quorum

5.03. The presence, either in person or by proxy, at any meeting, of Members entitled to cast at least twenty (20%) percent of the total voting power of the Association shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the Members, a majority of those Members present in person or by proxy may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) days or more than thirty (30) days from the meeting date.

Required Vote

5.04. The vote of the majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the Members present, or represented by proxy, at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the meeting of Members, unless the vote of a greater number is required by statute or by the Declaration, by the Articles of Incorporation of this Association, or by these Bylaws.

ARTICLE 6
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Annual Meetings

6.01. The first meeting of the Members of the Association shall be held within thirty (30) days of filing the Association's Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State. After the first meeting, the annual meeting of the Members of the Association shall be held on the second Tuesday of January of each succeeding calendar year at the hour of 7:00 p.m. If the day for the annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the first day following that is not a legal holiday or a Saturday or Sunday.

Special Meetings

6.02. Special meetings of the Members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or by Members representing at least twenty (20%) percent of the total voting power of the Association.

Place

6.03. Meetings of the Members shall be held within the Project or at a meeting place as close thereto as possible as the Board may specify in writing.

Notice of Meetings

6.04. Written notice of all Members' meetings shall be given by or at the direction of the Secretary of the Association or other such other persons as may be authorized to call the

meeting, by mailing or personally delivering a copy of such notice at least ten (10) but not more than fifty (50) days before the meeting to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting. The notice must be addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. The notice shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the nature of the business to be undertaken.

Order of Business

6.05. The order of business at all meetings of the Members shall be as follows:

- (a) Roll call;
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
- (c) Reading of Minutes of preceding meeting;
- (d) Reports of officers;
- (e) Reports of committees;
- (f) Election of directors;
- (g) Unfinished business;
- (h) New business.

Action Without Meeting

6.06. Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Members or any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Members may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Members and filed with the Secretary of the Association.

ARTICLE 7
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Number

7.01. The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of three (3) persons none of which need be Members of the Initial Board of Directors. The Initial Board of Directors shall serve at the discretion of the Declarant named in the Declaration (Declarant's Control Period) until such time as Declarant has conveyed fifty (50%) percent of the Units to Owners other than Declarant, at which time a special meeting of the Members shall be called to elect two (2) additional Directors (all of whom must be Members) within one hundred twenty (120) days thereof. Within one hundred twenty (120) days after Declarant has conveyed seventy (75%) percent of the Units to Owners other than Declarant, a special meeting of the Members shall be called to elect five (5) Directors, all of whom must be Members.

Term

7.02. The Initial Board of Directors shall serve at the discretion of the Declarant. The Directors elected by the Members at a special meeting of the Members shall serve until the following annual meeting of the Members. Thereafter, Directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Members and shall hold office for a term of one (1) year and until their successors are elected and qualified.

Removal

7.03. Directors may be removed from office with or without cause by a majority vote of the Members of the Council.

Vacancies

7.04. In the event of a vacancy on the Board caused by the death, resignation, or removal of a Director, the remaining Directors shall, by a majority vote, elect a successor who shall serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

Any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of directors shall be filled by election at an annual meeting of Members or a special meeting of Members called for that purpose.

Compensation

7.05. With the prior approval of a majority of the voting power of the Association, a Director may receive compensation in a reasonable amount for services rendered to the Association. A Director may be reimbursed by the Board for actual expenses incurred by the Directors in the performance of the Director's duties.

Powers and Duties

7.06. The Board shall have the powers and duties, and shall be subject to limitations on such powers and duties, as enumerated in the Governing Instruments of the Project.

ARTICLE 8
NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nomination

8.01. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made from the floor at the annual meeting of the Members.

Election

8.02. Directors are elected at the annual meeting of Members of the Association. Members, or their proxies, may cast, in respect to each vacant directorship, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The nominees receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected.

ARTICLE 9
MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

Regular Meetings

9.01. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly at a place within the Project and at a time as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Notice of the time and place of regular meeting shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Common Elements.

Special Meetings

9.02. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by written notice signed by the President of the Association or by any two (2) Directors other than the President.

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. Notice of a special meeting must be given to each Director not less than three (3) days, or more than fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for such meeting by written notice either delivered personally, sent by mail, or sent by telegram to each Director at the Director's address as shown in the records of the Association. A copy of such notice shall be posted in a prominent place or places in the Common Elements of the Project not less than three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting.

Quorum

9.03. A quorum for the transaction of business by the Board of Directors shall be a majority of the number of Directors constituting the Board of Directors as fixed by these Bylaws.

Voting Requirement

9.04. The act of the majority of Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless any provision of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of this Association or these Bylaws requires the vote of a greater number.

Open Meetings

9.05. Regular or special meetings of the Board shall be open to all Members of the Association; provided, however, that Association Members who are not on the Board may not participate in any deliberation or discussion unless expressly authorized to do so by the vote of a majority of a quorum of the Board.

Executive Session

9.06. The Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote on personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, contract negotiations, enforcement actions, other business of a confidential nature involving a Member, and matters requested by the involved parties to remain confidential. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.

ARTICLE 10

OFFICERS

Enumeration of Officers

10.01. The Officers of this Association shall be a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and a Vice President, who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, create such other offices as it deems necessary or desirable.

Term

10.02. The Officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors, and each shall hold office for one (1) year, unless the Officer shall sooner resign, be removed, or be otherwise disqualified to serve.

Resignation and Removal

10.03. Any Officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of the notice or at any later time specified in the notice. Any Officer may be removed from office by the Board whenever, in the Board's judgment, the best interests of the Association would be served by such removal.

Multiple Offices

10.04. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President, Treasurer, and Secretary.

Compensation

10.05. Officers shall receive such compensation for services rendered to the Association as determined by the Board of Directors and approved by a majority of the voting power of the Association.

ARTICLE 11

PRESIDENT

Election

11.01. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Members, the Board shall elect one of their number to act as President.

Duties

11.02. The President shall:

(a) Preside over all meetings of the Members and of the Board.

(b) Sign as President all deeds, contracts, and other instruments in writing that have been first approved by the Board, unless the Board, by duly adopted resolution, has authorized the signature of another Officer.

(c) Call meetings of the Board whenever he or she deems it necessary in accordance with rules and on notice agreed to by the Board. The notice period shall, with the exception of emergencies, in no event be less than three (3) days.

(d) Have, subject to the advise of the Board, general supervision, direction, and control of the affairs of the Association and discharge such other duties as may be required of him or her by the Board.

ARTICLE 12

VICE PRESIDENT

Election

12.01. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Members, the Board may elect one of its Members to act as Vice President.

Duties

12.02. The Vice President shall perform the following duties:

(a) Act in the place and in the stead of the President in

the event of the President's absence, inability, or refusal to act.

(b) Exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of the Vice President by the Board. In connection with any such additional duties, the Vice President shall be responsible to the President.

ARTICLE 13

SECRETARY

Election

13.01. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Members, the Board shall elect a Secretary.

13.02. The Secretary shall perform the following duties:

(a) Keep a record of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the Members;

(b) Keep the seal of the Association, if any, and affix it on all papers requiring the seal;

(c) Serve such notice of meetings of the Board and the Members required either by law or by these Bylaws.

(d) Keep appropriate current records showing the Members of this Association together with their addresses.

(e) Sign as Secretary all deeds, contracts, and other instruments in writing which have been first approved by the Board if the instruments require a second Association signature, unless the Board has authorized another Officer to sign in the place and stead of the Secretary by duly adopted resolution.

ARTICLE 14

TREASURER

Election

14.01. At the first meeting of the Board immediately following the annual meeting of the Members, the Board shall elect a Treasurer.

Duties

14.02. The Treasurer shall perform the following duties:

(a) Receive and deposit in a bank or banks, as the Board may from time to time direct, all of the funds of the Association.

(b) Be responsible for and supervise the maintenance of books and records to account for the Association's funds and other Association assets.

(c) Disburse and withdraw funds as the Board may from time to time direct, and in accordance with prescribed procedures.

(d) Prepare and distribute the financial statements for the Association required by the Declaration.

ARTICLE 15

BOOKS AND RECORDS

Maintenance

15.01. Complete and correct records of account and minutes of proceedings of meetings of Members, Directors, and committees shall be kept at the registered office of the corporation. A record continuing the names and addresses of all Members entitled

to vote shall be kept at the registered office or principal place of business of the Association.

Inspection

15.02. The Governing Instruments of the Project, the membership register, the books of account, and the minutes of proceedings shall be available for inspection and copying by any Member of the Association or any Director for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE 16

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Amendment of Bylaws

16.01. These Bylaws may be amended, altered, or repealed at a regular or special meeting of the Members of the Association by the affirmative vote in person or by proxy of Members representing a majority of a quorum of the Association. Notwithstanding the above, the percentage of affirmative votes necessary to amend a specific clause or provision shall not be less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken under that clause.

Attestation

16.02. Adopted by the Board of Directors on January 1, 1996.

Attest:


Hans J. Schmidt, Secretary

HOA Fee \$120 per month

Basic Expenses Per Month

Amount divided by 38 condos

Insurance	\$1,930.71	\$50.81
Water/Trash	\$1,283	\$34.00
Electricity	\$120	\$3.15
Maintenance	\$600	\$15.79
Management	\$580	\$15.26

Total Monthly per condo = \$119.01

SAXON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUMS
POBOX 6356
MCALLEN, TX 78502 - 6356
Saxonvillage17@aol.com



H.O.A. Fee \$120 to be mailed to listed
P.O. Box address by 5th day every month.
No invoices mailed. OR pay thru Zelle
to saxonvillage17@aol.com.

ALL LATE PAYMENT REQUIRES LATE FEE WITHOUT DISCUSSION

30-60 DAYS + \$10.00

61-90 DAYS + \$10.00

NEXT STEP LAW ENFORCEMENT

Saxon Village Condominiums Association

P. O. Box 6356

McAllen, Texas 78502-6356

Things To Consider About Condos

1. Pay your dues on time, listing month paying
2. Individual Condo insurance is required
3. Be considerate of neighbors.
4. Remember parking rules
5. No Bbq pits
6. Pick up debris around your condo
7. Advise of any damages or concerns to management
8. Check water heaters in attic for leaks
9. Check air-cons in attic for leaks
10. Fumigate frequently to avoid pest problems
11. Please avoid storing things outside
12. Inform tenants of rules
13. Each building has one water-meter...repairs affect all bldg
14. No dividing condos
15. During freezing time advise tenants to leave a drip
16. Call McAllen Police if disturbances or suspicious activity
17. Provide copy of rental agreements



CERTIFICATE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
07/30/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERNS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

If this certificate is being prepared for a party who has an insurable interest in the property, do not use this form. Use ACORD 27 or ACORD 28.

PRODUCER ROBERT GARZA INSURANCE AGENCY 2211 E GRIFFIN PRKwy STE 130 MISSION, TX 78572	CONTACT NAME: ROBERT GARZA PHONE (A/C, No. Ext): 956-600-8990 E-MAIL ADDRESS: RGARZAINS@YAHOO.COM PRODUCER CUSTOMER ID #:	FAX (A/C, No):
INSURED SAXON VILLAGE CONDOMINIUMS PO BOX 6356 MCALLEN, TX 78502-6356	INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE INSURER A : CERTAIN UNDERWRITERS AT LLOYDS INSURER B : UNITED STATES LIABILITY INS CO INSURER C : INSURER D : INSURER E : INSURER F :	NAIC # 561110 26522

COVERAGES	CERTIFICATE NUMBER:	REVISION NUMBER:
LOCATION OF PREMISES / DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required) 3501, 3505, 3509 N. 23rd LN MCALLEN, TX 78501		

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE		POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXPIRATION DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)	COVERED PROPERTY	LIMITS
A	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> PROPERTY		42-7580144005-S-2	08/02/2021	08/02/2022	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> BUILDING	\$3,343,520
	CAUSES OF LOSS	DEDUCTIBLES				PERSONAL PROPERTY	\$
	<input type="checkbox"/> BASIC	BUILDING				BUSINESS INCOME	\$
	<input type="checkbox"/> BROAD	NAMED WS 2%				EXTRA EXPENSE	\$
	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> SPECIAL	CONTENTS				RENTAL VALUE	\$
	<input type="checkbox"/> EARTHQUAKE	W/H 10,000				BLANKET BUILDING	\$
	<input type="checkbox"/> WIND	ALL OTH 5,00C				BLANKET PERS PROP	\$
	<input type="checkbox"/> FLOOD	PER BLDG				BLANKET BLDG & PP	\$
	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/> GEN LIAB					GEN LIABILITY	\$1,000,000 PER OC
							\$
	INLAND MARINE		TYPE OF POLICY				\$
	CAUSES OF LOSS						\$
	NAMED PERILS		POLICY NUMBER				\$
	CRIME						\$
	TYPE OF POLICY						\$
	BOILER & MACHINERY / EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN						\$
							\$
B	DIRECTORS & OFFICERS LIAB	CAP021Y0147		08/02/2021	08/02/2022		\$1,000,000
							\$

SPECIAL CONDITIONS / OTHER COVERAGES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER	CANCELLATION
	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
	ROBERT GARZA

© 1995-2000 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.